2003

# Wendy Lomsdal v. Keith Cox : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Appellant, Keith Cox, during a divorce/custody action, had a judgment entered against him, after a trial was held, in the First Judicial District -Logan Department, on February 23, 2000. This appeal originates from the trial court's abuses of discretion, refusal to take judicial notice, denial of due process and equal protection under the law, and issues of res judicata involving multiple jurisdictions. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to the Utah Code Annotated §78-2a-3, as amended,[1953].

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES

Did the trial court correctly apply the legal standard in entering a judgment against the appellant by way and through the Decree of Custody? More specifically, did those measures that the trial court used constituted a denial of the appellant's constitutional

guarantees as implemented by the First District Court-Logan, State of Utah's: re-litigation of claims that had previously been adjudicated in Missouri, of which the appellee and the appellant stipulated to as equaling a Utah Judgment; the trial court's refusal to take judicial notice; an insufficient explanation of the custody award within the Decree of Custody's Findings of Fact; the voluntary and continual imposition of gender based discrimination in awarding both the initial custody award and the final custody award by trial courts in the State of Utah, in this case and a host of others.

Supplemental to the aforementioned errors, the trial court erred when it accepted the Plaintiff's Affidavit of Impecuniosity, in light of the plaintiff removing \$4,025.66 from her checking account one week prior to filing the same.

An additional abuse occur when the trial judge levied a \$1000.00 charge for attorney's fee against the appellant, for a perceived excessive use of the court's time.

### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

The issues raised in this appeal present both questions of law and of fact, which are brought forward within the body of this appeal. In consideration of this appeal, resulting from the misapplication of existing law, as it relates to the arbitrary use of the district court's interpretation, that final judgment deserves no deference, and is reviewed

for correction of error, and clarification of law. As to the extent that there are disputed factual issues, the trial court's refusal to take judicial notice, and the ignoring of an existing judgment in another jurisdiction, those facts are included within the record and included for review for clear error.

Therefore the standard would be for either an reversal of the Decree of Custody as issued by the First District Court - Logan against the Appellant, and the imposition of the Missouri Judgment, or the issuance of an Extraordinary Writ, by this Appellate Court, granting permanent, primary custody of the minor child, to the Appellant.

## **DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS**

The full text of the following determinative constitutional provisions and rules are reproduced at Appendix III:

- A. The Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution;
- B. The Tenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution;
- C. The Fifth Amendment of the U. S. Constitution;
- D. Article III, Section 2, of the U.S. Constitution;
- E. Title 42 United States Code Section 1983;
- F. Article I, Section 1, of the Constitution of Utah;
- G. Article I, Section 7, of the Constitution of Utah;
- I. Article I, Section 11, of the Constitution of Utah;
- J. Article I, Section 18, of the Constitution of Utah;
- K. Article I, Section 24, of the Constitution of Utah;
- L. Article I, Section 26, of the Constitution of Utah;
- M. Article I, Section 27, of the Constitution of Utah;
- N. Article IV, Section 26, of the Constitution of Utah;
- O. Utah Code Annotated, 78-7-9;
- P. Utah Code Annotated, 62A-4a-412;
- Q. Utah Code Annotated, 30-3-5.2;
- R. Utah Code Annotated, 76-5-301;
- S. Utah Code Annotated 76-5-303;
- T. Utah Code Annotated 78-45c-201;
- U. Utah Code Annotated, 30-3-3,30-3-4;
- V. Utah Code Annotated, 30-3-10,30-3-10.4;
- W. Utah Rules of Evidence, Rule 201,803,902
- X. Utah Code of Judicial Administration, Rule 4-506, Rule 4-903, Rule 4-911;
- Y. Utah Rules of Judicial Conduct, Canon 1, Canon 2, and Canon 3.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### *A. Nature of Case*

This is an appellate action asking the Court to vacate, dismiss, reverse, or issue an extraordinary writ for relief from the First District Court-Logan's Decree of Custody, wherein it awarded custody to the appellee, and granted attorney fees to the appellee.

### *B. Course of Proceeding*

Appellant, Keith Cox, brought this action for relief, contrary to the entry of the Decree for Custody entered against him in the First Judicial District Court, pursuant to the Equal Protection Clause and the of 42 U.S.C. § 1983, U.S. Constitution Amendment XIV. Appellant alleges that he was denied due process and equal protection under the law because the trial court refused to acknowledge a prior judgment entered in Missouri, and initially reduced the appellant's custody rights, which are inherent rights reserved under the IX and X Amendments of the U.S. Constitution, for no reason other than his gender. The appellant further contends that the trial court abused its discretion by refusing to take judicial notice when properly motioned and when the court failed to adequately explain the basis for its decision to award custody to the appellee.

### *C. Disposition in the Court Below*

On February 23, 2000, the First District Court-Logan Department, J. Judkins presiding, concluded a civil bench trial for custody and rendered its decision. That

decision was against the Appellant and in favor of the Appellee, granting custody of the minor child to the Appellee.

In contention were the hearings before Commissioner Garner, on May 7, 1998, and April 29, 1999, as gross injustices visited upon the Appellant by the trial court.

*D. Statement of the Facts*

Appellant had filed an action where the parties at issue resided at that time, the State of Missouri. The Appellee was properly served and failed to file a responsive pleading, or appear on the designated date and time. The Circuit Court of Missouri issued a Judgment, November, 1996, wherein both parties were given joint legal custody of their minor child Anna.

The mother fled from that jurisdiction and began to reside in Utah, where she then filed an action in the First District in 1997. Initially she claimed that the Appellant was not the natural father and had a protective order taken out against him. Subsequent to a trial, the Appellee and Appellant, signed a Stipulation, January 21, 1997, within which she agreed to acknowledge the Missouri Judgment as a Utah Judgment, and a copy of which was filed with the district court.

The protective order, taken out January 26, 1996, Plato, Missouri, was recognized by Commissioner Daniel Garner, but the court at all other times refused, ignored, or disregarded any mentioning of prior orders, judgments, or official documents outside of Utah, as they related to this case.

April 29, 1999, the court recognized that both the appellant and the appellee were “good parents,” based upon Mr. Price’s input and the evaluation reflected the same. The Divorce was granted, under the bifurcation, which was denied, but somehow granted, and the issues of custody, visitation, and the evaluation were reserved until trial.

The trial occurred February 3 and 23, 2000. The Appellant, after having bore the entire economic burden of pretrial legal maneuvering and exploitation by the court and opposition, was forced to represent himself Pro Se.

The Appellant used an estimated one(1) hour, forty-five (45) minutes of the total 7 hours of trial time. The end result was that J. Judkins awarded attorney fee equaling \$1000.00 to the appellee, based upon the appellant’s perceived excessive use of time during the trial. The court affirmed and awarded primary custody to the appellee, subject to the appellant’s right to visitation. Hence, the origination of this claim currently before the Utah Court of Appeals.

The remaining facts that are disputed are readily within the trial court record and within Appellant’s Brief before this Court now.

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The appellant believes that the First District Court - Logan Department erred in awarding custody to the plaintiff-mother, and against him when the Circuit Court of Missouri had already entered a final judgment of the same facts, involving the same parties. The trial court in Utah also failed to recognize a previous set of facts, all at issue before that court, which established prior adjudication within the jurisdiction of Missouri, and Stipulated to by both of the parties at issue and referenced herein.

Additionally, upon motion before the First District Court-Logan, the appellant asked that the court take judicial notice of several facts of law and circumstance of which both parties were aware, and that information was readily made available to the court, its officers, and the custody evaluators. In that the evaluation was not performed by a psychologist and failed to meet all factors under Utah law.

As the record of this case reflects, the trial court failed to meet the minimum requirements of satisfactorily articulating its rationale for the custody arrangement within the body of the Decree of Custody's Findings of Fact. When initially the court granted the mother temporary primary custody, under the guise of the tender years doctrine, and the natural father was stripped of his primary custody rights, without a trial, and supplanted with mere visitation rights contrary to due process.



The final determination was based without a sufficient showing of evidence and thereby rendered the defendant-father at a disadvantage in his pursuit for primary custody of the child. The trial court required, after leave, a custody evaluation which intentionally overlooked evidence of the plaintiff's lack of parenting skill, involving her past conduct relating to the abuse of her children. Stemming out of this adverse, and biased application of custodial evaluation standards the proceedings would have concluded differently and the custody decree would have reflected such.

Appellant asserts that there are substantial defects and fraudulent measures employed within the custody determination, specifically surrounding the Findings of Fact and within the custody evaluation process. Furthermore, the appellant contends that the Guardian Ad Litem, and counsel for the plaintiff-appellee, were allowed to interview witnesses, without benefit of appellant or appellant's counsel's presence. This was admitted to in open court and can only be either an abuse of discretion by the court allowing the same or due process was denied. The appellant was given approximately 1.75 hours of time during the trial, which lasted two days, totaling 7 hours. The Court, the plaintiff and the Guardian Ad Litem consumed the remaining time, but ironically the court granted \$1000.00 to plaintiff-appellee because of a supposed perception of extensive time taken by appellant to present his case.

It is the appellant's belief that the First District Court-Logan abused its discretion in awarding custody to the plaintiff by 1) the re-litigation of a claims that had previously

been adjudicated in Missouri; 2) the trial court's refusal to take judicial notice, which amounted to a violation of appellant's due process rights; 3) the insufficient explanation of the Findings of Fact; 4) imposing gender based discrimination in awarding the initial custody arrangement; 5) Guardian Ad Litem and counsel for the plaintiff interviewed and corresponded with witnesses outside the court, and outside the presence of the defendant; 6) ignoring the signed stipulation, freely entered into by the parties at issue; 7) levying attorney fees against the appellant arbitrarily; 8) the acceptance of the plaintiff's affidavit of impecuniosity one week after the plaintiff withdrew \$4,025.66 and closed her bank account.

## **ARGUMENT**

### **Point I**

THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY RE-LITIGATING THE CLAIMS THAT HAD PREVIOUSLY BEEN ADJUDICATED IN A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION IN MISSOURI.

The Missouri Circuit Court held session, to hear argument on paternity issues involving Anna Marie, due to the mother's failure to appear default judgment was entered against her, and joint legal custody was awarded to each of the parties at issue before the

court, subject to the limitations included within that Amended Judgment. Ms. Lomsdal was properly served and then failed to file any responsive or statements of defense, and then failed to appear.

**Jacobsen v Jacobsen**, 703 P. 2d 303,305 (Utah 1985), outlines “When there has been an adjudication, it becomes res judicata as to those issues which were either tried and determined, upon all issues which the party had fair opportunity to present and have determined in the other proceedings.”

This principle, res judicata, is fully applicable in this custody determination. Within the esteemed Circuit Court of Missouri, Case No. CV196-154DR, said Judgment awarded Keith Cox, Plaintiff, paternal rights as the natural father with “the birth certificate,” to be “changed to reflect,” that; and joint legal custody with primary physical custody of the minor child remaining with Wendy Lomsdal; filed October 23, 1996, with visitation under the following provisions:

- A. Eight weeks in the summer;
- B. Alternating holidays;
- C. One (1) week in October and March of each year;
- D. Each party to be responsible for one half of any transportation costs involved in transporting the minor child to and from the afore-mentioned visits with Plaintiff.”

*(See Exhibit I, A, pg 1)*

In January 1997, within the jurisdiction of the First Judicial District-Logan, case number 964000353 PA, the appellee entered and signed a stipulation with the appellant agreeing to the following:

1. Plaintiff, Wendy Lomsdal, agrees to dismiss her Utah action for paternity.
2. Plaintiff, agrees to dismiss the Protective Order and incorporate same in this action.
3. Plaintiff, agrees to recognize the Missouri Judgment as a Utah Judgment.

*(See Exhibit I, B)*

A Utah case determined the criteria necessary for preclusion, **Madsen v Borthick**, 769 P. 2d 245, 247 (Utah 1988), wherein the court stated "Claim preclusion bars a cause of action only if the suit in which that cause of action is being asserted and the prior suit satisfies three requirements. First, both cases must involve the same parties or their privies. Second, the claim that is alleged to be barred must have been presented in the first suit or must be one that could and should have been raised in the first action. Third, the first suit must have resulted in a final judgment on the merits." In this case, currently on appeal, all three criteria have been satisfied, the only caveat is that this case involves child custody and that same child's welfare.

From the inception of this case in Missouri, and then again in Logan, it has been the contention of the appellant that both the threat of abuse and that actual abuse have been visited upon the child by either the mother or within her immediate area of control.

Yet, the Utah District Court-Logan, failing to act in accordance with any provision of Utah Law; **Utah Code Annotated §30-3-5.2, §78-7-9, or §62A-4a-412**; omitted any right minded or reasonable person standard, the court granted the mother temporary sole custody in lieu of evidence submitted contrary to that assumption, e.g., photographs of bruising to the minor child. The photograph were enough to warrant the Commissioner to assign the Guardian Ad Litem, but not enough to preserve either the safety of the child or the natural father's rights under due process. (*See Exhibit II*).

Within the body of the case of **State in Interest of J. L. W., 900 P.2d 543, 550** (Utah 1995), J. Bench clearly outlines what ought be preserved "All too frequently, there comes to the state's attention parents whose own conduct has effectively destroyed the parent-child relationship and the state must remove the child from its environment if it determines that removal would be in the best interests of the child. Moreover, when the relationship has been destroyed, "it is usually in the best interests of the child to terminate that relationship and allow the child an opportunity to establish a meaningful relationship with loving, responsible parents." When this right and privilege is to be afforded to the father, who is the loving, responsible parent, and to the minor child, is the question currently before this court. Despite the court's acknowledgment and awareness of a prior decree, the stipulation agreement of the parties, and absent the required showing of a substantial material change of circumstance, this case was allowed to move forward to trial. Utah Court of Appeals has ruled on this beforehand with extreme caution, **Larson v**

**Larson**, 888 P. 2d 719, 722 n.2 (Utah App. 1994), “We have . . . trepidation about the applicability of res judicata to child custody and related proceeding . . . where the welfare of children is at stake.,” but again in this case not even a cautionary remark by the trial court.

The court laid out in **Cummings v Cummings**, 384 Ut. Adv. Rep. 5, (1999), res judicata definitions in related domestic matters. “Res judicata prohibits only a later cause of action based on matter which could have sustained the claim determined on the merits in the former judgment—not a cause of action which might have been determined only if an additional argument, not made in the previous case, had proved persuasive on the separate and distinct claim which formed the basis of the prior judgment.”

“Claim preclusion prevents the re-litigation of claims that have been fully litigated between these parties and also those claims which should have been litigated in the prior action,” **Copper State Thrift & Loan v Bruno**, 735 P. 2d 387, 389 (Utah App. 1987). The appellee was properly served, as the Missouri Amended Judgment indicates, and she failed to appear. A default judgment was entered against her, she again failed to appeal the entry of that judgment, and that judgment stood inasmuch as the parties shared joint legal custody. Within this case there has been an adjudication, thereby it became res judicata as to those issues which were tried and determined. (*See Exhibit I, A*).

Where a prior judgment was entered, Missouri Circuit Court, of which all issues were tried and the parties had an opportunity to present and have determined in those

proceedings, then the First District Court should have been proscribed from entering a judgment on those issues. Neither party displayed or claimed that a substantial and material change of circumstances occurred except for the appellee's absconding with the minor child from the jurisdiction of Missouri, in violation of **Utah Code Annotated, § 76-5-301, §76-5-303, and §78-45c-201**, of which the court completely ignored upon the initial custody award, before J. Harris, November 17, 1997. The First District Court aided the appellee in the commission of a felony. **Utah Code Annotated, §30-3-3**, clearly delineates what constitutes a material change and determines the costs therein. Neither party filed a Motion for Modification of Custody and each party was aware of the existing order in Missouri.

Without such a showing of material change of circumstance, the trial court should have been barred from hearing the parties grievances in this action. As neither party claimed such a change, the trial court was barred from entering a final judgment or even addressing the claims with the Missouri mandate in existence.

**State in Interest of J. J. T., 877 P.2d 161, 164**, (Utah 1994), this court found that "Moreover, non-application –or at least the flexible application – of res judicata in termination of parental rights proceedings does not leave the parents unprotected and subject to vexatious litigation. There are other protections in place that adequately safeguard the parent's rights without compromising the significant concern for the child's welfare."

## Point II

THE TRIAL COURT'S REFUSAL TO TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE, WHEN PROPERLY MOTIONED, CONSTITUTED A VIOLATION OF THE APPELLANT'S DUE PROCESS RIGHTS.

As each of the parties, and their respective attorneys were aware, all the records and proceedings that the appellant was motioning the trial court to take notice of, and counsel for the opposition and appellee herself had time and place to rebut, the trial court should have granted the Defendant's Motion For Court to Recognize Adjudicative Facts Pursuant to Rules of Evidence (Rule 201). (*See Exhibit I, E*)

Especially when the court did not sua sponte take judicial notice of those prior adjudicated facts, and proper notice to each of the parties already existed, since those adjudicated facts pertained to the plaintiff-mother's prior incidents of child abuse. The appellant insured that each of the respective parties, and/or their counselors, were notified of defendant-father's intent, the motion was arranged and in accordance with **Utah Rules of Evidence, Rule 201**. Under subsection (c) "Court may take judicial notice, whether requested or not." However, under subsection (d) "a court is required to take judicial notice if requested by a party and supplied with the necessary information." Moreover, the rule states in subsection (f) "judicial notice may be taken at any stage of the proceeding." As the record reflects, the court had the information available via the motion, by way of attachments/exhibits, and also through the DCFS investigations and the



investigation report of the Guardian Ad Litem. In the case of **Zions First Nat'l Bank v National Am. Title Ins. Co.**, 749 P.2d 651, 654 (Utah 1988), the rule applies even where the facts are not disputed and the issue raised is one of law.

The facts contained within the appellant's motion were essential to rebutting the custody evaluation, (whereas the evaluator ignored those facts), the techniques employed therein, and to thwart any attempt to decrease the appellant's custodial rights via any determination by the court. During the May 7, 1998, hearing, the trial court stated to the plaintiff "If everything turns out the way you say, then you have custody of this child on a permanent basis, . . ."

*(See Exhibit III, A; pg. 14, Lines 21-23)*

Since the court relied heavily upon a deficient evaluation, and established the criteria surrounding the award and its relationship to the evaluation, then custody should be reverted to the defendant. Both Mr. Price, and Diane Balmain, Guardian Ad Litem, held out before the court that they were privy to knowledge about all items contained within Mr. Cox's motion. Attorney Balmain, during the February 23, 2000, trial date, stated "I received information from the State of Missouri regarding the issues of past abuse against Ms. Lomsdal's other children, as perpetrated by a former partner." *(See Exhibit III, D; pg. 167-168)*

Yet, neither the evaluator nor the Guardian Ad Litem gave any credence to the relevance or importance of that information. In fact the evaluator completely ignored

most of the information, and justifiably excused the plaintiff-mothers actions within the body of the evaluation. Ms. Balmain, failed to follow-up on the information and only gave the information, as provided by DCFS a cursory inspection. DCFS reports, stemming from 1997 through 1999, all claim defects in parenting by the mother, substantiate allegations against her, but claim there are no deficiencies sufficient to change custody. The Guardian Ad Litem, and Mr. Price, in turn passed the information to the trial court, where at trial testimony was given by DCFS about abuse, and all failed to act in good conscience. (*See Exhibits I, M; III, D, pg. 167-168; III, D, pg 170; III, D, pg. 149*)

The court whitewashed over the adjudicated facts from Missouri and the State of Washington, awarded custody to the plaintiff and thereby denied Mr. Cox his Constitutional guarantee of equal protection and due process. The custody decree and the change in the custody award, minus this judicial prejudice, would have bestowed upon the appellant an more favorable result. This is beyond the "reasonable likelihood," standard in use today, **State v Hutchinson**, 655 P.2d 635, 636 (Utah 1982).

The parent-child relationship is accorded Constitutional protection as delineated within the case of **In re K.S., Jr. & B.S.**, 737 P.2d 170, 172 (Utah 1987). Given that the welfare of the child is tantamount to the custody proceedings, those same proceedings may not eliminate the parent's right to Due Process. Appellant claims that the trial court, in this case, erred by not allowing the judicial notice of evidentiary items, supposedly

being relied upon by the custody evaluator, and the Guardian Ad Litem, while those same items were excluded from examination, admission into evidence, and admission into the record. Appellant's custodial rights were seriously eroded without support of clear and convincing evidence and without benefit of a trial.

The error, as committed by the First District Court- Logan, in not taking judicial notice, when properly noticed, resulted in prejudice sufficient to warrant reversal of the custody decree and an Appellate Court Writ of Extraordinary Relief granting the appellant sole custody of the minor child. There exists more than a reasonable likelihood that the outcome would have been more favorable to the defendant-father if said notice were given appropriate weight by the trial court as in **State v Knight**, 734 P. 2d 913, 919 (Utah 1987).

### **Point III**

THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION, IN LIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE OR ABSENT EVIDENCE, AND THAT THE FINDINGS OF FACT ARE INSUFFICIENT TO EXPLAIN THE BASIS IN AWARDING CUSTODY OF THE PARTY'S MINOR CHILD TO THE PLAINTIFF/APPELLEE.

The trial court did not adequately explain the basis for its decision to award custody to the plaintiff/appellee initially, or within the Decree for Custody. Within the Findings of Fact, subheading 5, "The custody evaluation ordered by the court recommended that custody be awarded to the petitioner." There is no express mentioning

of why the custody evaluation conformed to the court's determination. Absent, also, is an explanation of the legal or logical basis for reaching this conclusion. It is not located within the Findings of Fact nor disclosed clearly in any other findings made by the trial court proceedings. Inadequate Findings of Fact constitute error on the part of the trial court, and unless the facts in the record are "clear, uncontroverted, and capable of supporting only a finding in favor of the judgment," **Kinkella v Baugh**, 660 P.2d 233, 236 (Utah 1983), this case should be reversed. In **Sukin v Sukin**, 842 P. 2d 922, 925, (Utah 1992), the court determined that "the court should enter clear findings regarding the decision." Of which is seriously lacking within the trial court's findings in this case. (*See Exhibit I, C, pg.2*)

The only reference that has any resemblance or adherence to statutory factors that would attribute the custody award of the minor child to the appellee is located under subheading three (3) of the Findings of Fact, it reads:

"The minor child has been residing with the Petitioner and her step-brothers and sisters. The respondent has been exercising standard visitation."

Clearly this falls short of a reasonable explanation on the basis of awarding custody to the appellee, in any court elsewhere, and it doesn't qualify as a minimum requirement of respect toward **Utah Code Annotated §30-3-4 (1)(d)**. (*See Exhibit I, C, pg.2*)

Unless there is some merit within Commissioner Daniel Garner's prejudicial statement, on April 29, 1999, "Dr. Price is held in high esteem in this court. That doesn't mean that we rubber stamp custody evaluations, but any evidence contrary to his findings would have to clear a high hurdle," then the trial court, in this matter, was biased at the onset. It seems that bias is the logical deduction, especially when Mr. Price is not a Doctor, but the court, seems ready to hand out a title without benefit of acclimation toward a specific doctorate degree sufficient to persuade a Board of Psychologist or any other school of the sciences. (*See Exhibit III, B, pg. 4*) What this amounts too is an additional barrier that the defendant-father had to satisfactorily summit and it is outside of the trial court's broad based discretion to insist upon. Additionally, the Findings of Fact lack any reflective qualities of this caveat. As the Appellate Court stated in **Rucker v Dalton**, 598 P. 2d 1336, 1338 (Utah 1979): "The importance of a complete, accurate, and consistent findings of fact in a case tried by a judge is essential to the resolution of dispute under the proper rule of law. To that end the findings should be sufficiently detailed and include enough subsidiary facts to disclose the steps by which the ultimate conclusion on each factual issue was reached."

Since the trial court's Findings of Fact are clearly erroneous in that regard, and the appellant has now marshaled evidence to support the premise, a reversal of the final determination is in order. If the appellant has not sufficiently marshaled evidence, it is because he was barred by the trial court, and as the Appeals Court has avoided in the past,

**Cox Rock Products v Walker Pipeline Constr.,** 754 P. 2d 672, 676 (Utah 1988) Note 4, Rule 201, “we would have the power to take judicial notice for the first time and, indeed, might do so in an appropriate case,” or by proscription relating to the trial court’s refusal to take judicial notice, which would have allowed the marshaling of evidence to support such.

#### **Point IV**

THE APPELLANT WAS DENIED HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS AND EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER THE LAW WHEN THE TRIAL COURT AND THE STATE OF UTAH IMPOSED, UNDER “COLOR OF LAW,” GENDER BASED AND ECONOMIC DISCRIMINATION IN AWARDING THE INITIAL CUSTODY ARRANGEMENT.

Commissioner Daniel Garner, during a hearing held May 7, 1998, openly remarked, in court to the defendant-father, “So if you want custody, put your money where your mouth is and pay for the custody evaluation so we can get it started.”

*(See Exhibit III, A, pg.13)*

If the court is now claiming that the best interest of the child are secondary to the income and/or the financial positions of the parties, then by 1) openly debating the need for a custody evaluation; and 2) requiring the defendant-father to bear the costs associative, on the court’s recommendation of a custody evaluation; and 3) parleying the exchange of money for the physical possession of a human being, the trial court is

attempting to sell the custody of children to the highest bidder, and thereby selling justice, not dispensing justice within the parameters of the U.S. Constitution, Constitution of Utah, or the Utah Code Annotated.

Furthermore, the appellant asserts that what Commissioner Garner did was make an offer, to which the appellant accepted, by way of payment as instructed, each side was aware of the consideration and thereby an unenforceable, unconscionable contract was formed. The breach occurred in the performance by the court in its awarding the custody to someone other than the defendant-father, who, unwittingly, and successfully completed his portion of the agreement.

During the same hearing, appellant's former counsel, Mr. Larson, was allowed to prejudice the appellant by withdrawing from the case, for the most unscrupulous of reasons, by exclaiming in open court, "I just — I'm not going to do a custody battle for poor people." Mr. Larson wasn't claiming non-payment for legal services, but merely placing the appellant under an adverse light before the court. The court, after making a statement "because looking at what I'm seeing here, I've seen these type of accidents before, these pictures here." Where is the concern for Due Process or Equal Protection if not for the father at least for the child? A withdrawal of counsel under the **Utah Code Of Judicial Administration Rule 4-506**, fails to mention a parol request being sufficient with permission of the court. **Utah Rules of Judicial Conduct, Canon 2 b**, states in part, "A judge shall not lend the prestige of the judicial office to advance the private

interests of others; nor shall a judge convey or permit others to convey the impression that they are in a special position to influence the judge.” (*See Exhibit III, A, pg.6, and pg 8*)

Also contained in **Canon 3, (B), (8)**, it states that “ A judge should require similar abstention on the part of court personnel subject to judicial direction and control.” As Mr. Larson is an officer of the court, subject to judicial direction and control, the judge improperly allow public comment which definitively affected the outcome, impaired the proceedings fairness and thereafter interfered with the appellant’s chance at having a fair trial.

There is no other reason than the gender of the appellee that allowed her to retain custody of the child. It was not in the child’s best interests, in accordance with **U.C. A. §30-3-10**, and **Hutchinson v Hutchinson**, 649 P.2d 38, 41 (Utah 1982), to remain with the mother who openly displays severe emotional and mental instabilities, or who has abused her own children, abdicated custody of her children, and has continually introduced paramour after paramour into her children’s lives.

Understandably, the trial court is given great latitude and breadth with its discretionary powers, but it is clear at this juncture that the responsibility of children is too vast and weighty for the existing court system to bear. It is indecipherable how, in this case alone, both a little girl and her father could be forced to endure this type of treatment inflicted upon them by a state court system too proud to enlist the aid of the legislature for a familial court breakdown. The appellant has found volumes of case law



wherein countless children have been harmed more by the judiciary than by the divorce/custody action itself, and in a state such as Utah where it is claimed to be family oriented.

The court establish in **Palmore v Sidoti**, 466 U.S. 429, 431-434, (FLA.1984), as it held that “Private biases may be outside the reach of the law, but the law cannot, directly, or indirectly, give them effect, \* \* \* the reality of private biases and the possible injury they might inflict are permissible considerations for the removal of \* child from the custody of its natural (parent).” [Gender neutrality added]

The maternal preference, or tender years doctrine violates the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution. For the State of Utah, or the judiciary within to assume a position of gender profiling is erroneous and the presumption is discriminatory. By arbitrarily applying this presumption, that only mothers can provide the critical nurturing and/or child rearing skills, indicative and relative to a specific age, without looking at individual characteristics and/or circumstances, the court did not evaluate the best interests of Anna Marie Cox. The trial court blindly assumed that the mother, albeit through stereotypical profiling she appears innocent enough, was more capable than the father to continue raising the child until such time as a trial could take place. The goal of granting custody, whether initially or post-trial, is based upon the best interests standard and is indisputable a substantial governmental interest under the Equal Protection Clause. The appellant claims that that is more responsibility than a district court Commissioner

can handle or to take on, and that policy is capricious by nature and ought be proscribed in the future. As laid out in most state statutes, the state is assumed to have a duty to protect the interests of minor children, particularly those of the tender years, not with discriminatory policies or arbitrary application of existing laws. "Public officials sworn to uphold the Constitution may not avoid a constitutional duty by bowing to the hypothetical effects of private \* prejudice that they assume to be both widely and deeply held," **Palmer v Thompson**, 403 U.S. 217, 260-261, (1971).

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