2003

# Wendy Lomsdal v. Keith Cox : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Appellant's claim that the court erred in awarding attorney fees is without merit, and is not supported by the evidence, and he has failed to marshal the evidence.

### ARGUMENT

#### 1. THE TRIAL COURT ACTED WITHIN ITS DISCRETION IN AWARDING ATTORNEY FEES

The Appellant claims that the trial court erred in awarding attorney fees because the Appellee had filed a fraudulent affidavit of Impecuniosity. Here the court heard evidence on the filing of the affidavit of impecuniosity, the allegation of fraud,

and Appellee's financial need. Appellee is the mother of six children, all of whom were living at home. She received an inheritance from her mother's estate, some \$4,000.00. The money was put aside to purchase a home and was used for that purpose prior to the filing of the affidavit a petition for divorce. Trial Transcript Page 100, line 20 through 25 and Page 101, line 1 through 5.

The court has discretion to award attorney fees in custody cases "to enable the other party to prosecute or defend the action." Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3(1) The court may also award attorney fees where the court finds that the fees are reasonable, and the requesting party is in need. Riche v. Riche, 784 P.2d 465. Here the court heard evidence on the hours spent, the per hour fee charged and whether the fee charged was reasonable. The court further found that the Appellant used an inordinate amount of time to present his case and that the Petitioner was required to retain an attorney to defend her in all of the these matters. Trial Transcript Page 219, lines 4 through 13.

The Appellant's claim regarding attorney fees is without merit because he has failed to marshal the evidence and he has failed to show how the court has abused its discretion in awarding fees.

This Court should affirm the award of attorney fees.